# MAGNETIC ANOMALIES IN WILSON AND WOODSON COUNTIES, KANSAS

By

William W. Hambleton and Daniel F. Merriam

State Geological Survey of Kansas, Bulletin 114, Part 3 UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS PUBLICATION LAWRENCE, KANSAS 1955

# STATE OF KANSAS

FRED HALL, Governor

#### STATE BOARD OF REGENTS

LESTER McCoy, Chairman

McDill Boyd RAY EVANS WALTER FEES MRS. LEO HAUGHEY A. W. HERSHBERGER WILLIS N. KELLY L. M. MORGAN OSCAR STAUFFER

#### **MINERAL INDUSTRIES COUNCIL**

B. O. WEAVER ('57), Chairman GEORGE K. MACKIE JR. ('55) CHARLES COOK ('56) DANE HANSEN ('56) JOE E. DENHAM ('56) K. A. SPENCER ('57)

BRIAN O'BRIAN ('55), Vice-Chairman W. L. STRYKER ('57) HOWARD CAREY ('58) SIMEON S. CLARKE ('58) LEE H. CORNELL ('58) E. J. JUNGMANN ('58)

STATE GEOLOGICAL SURVEY OF KANSAS FRANKLIN D. MURPHY, M.D., Chancellor of the University of Kansas, and ex officio Director of the Survey FRANK C. FOLEY, Ph.D., State Geologist and Director RAYMOND C. MOORE, Ph.D., Sc.D., Principal Geologist

#### BASIC GEOLOGY

STRATIGRAPHY, AREAL GEOLOGY, AND PALEONTOLOGY

John M. Jewett, Ph.D., Geologist A. B. Leonard, Ph.D., Paleontologist\* M. L. Thompson, Ph.D., Paleontologist\* Henry V. Beck, M.S., Geologist\* Betty Alvord, Stenographer

PETROGRAPHY

Ada Swineford, Ph.D., Petrographer

PUBLICATIONS AND RECORDS

UBLICATIONS AND RECORDS Betty J. Hagerman, Secretary & Editor Grace Muilenburg, B.S., Journalist Vera Witherspoon, B.F.A., Draftsman Juanita E. Lewis, B.F.A., Draftsman Jeanne Esch, B.F.A., Draftsman Haraldean Murray, B.F.A., Draftsman Lois J. Allerton, Draftsman Phyllis J. Harris, Clerk-Typist Shirley Johnson, Clerk-Steno Lila M. Watkins, Clerk-Typist

MINERAL RESOURCES

W. H. Schoewe, Ph.D., Coal Geologist R. O. Kulstad, M.S., Econ. Geologist Kenneth E. Rose, M.S., Met. Engineer\* H. E. Risser, E.M., Mining Engineer\*

SOUTHEASTERN KANSAS FIELD OFFICE Allison Hornbaker, M.S., Geologist Maxine Shaver, Stenographer Maxine Stewart, Clerk-Typist

COOPERATIVE DEPARTMENTS WITH GROUND-WATER RESOURCES V. C. Fishel, B.S., Engineer in Charge Howard G. O'Connor, B.S., Geologist Kenneth Walters, B.S., Geologist Gilbert J. Stramel, B.S., Geologist Gilbert J. Stramel, B.S., Geologist Charles Lane, B.S., Geologist Charles Lane, B.S., Geologist E. L. Reavis, Core Driller William Gellinger, Core Driller

MINERAL RESOURCES

MINERAL RESOURCES OIL AND GAS Edwin D. Goebel, M.S., Geologist Walter A. Ver Wiebe, Ph.D., Geologist\* Claude Shenkel, Jr., Ph.D., Geologist\* Wells W. Rood, Scout Ruby Marcellus, Well Sample Curator Judy Perry, Clerk-Typist Maxine Gantz, Clerk-Typist Carrie B. Thurber, Laboratory Assistant Shirley C. Metz, Laboratory Assistant Shirley C. Metz, Laboratory Assistant Wiehtra Wetz Sample Lubrary Ethelyn McDonald, M.A., Curator Della B. Cummings, Clerk SUBSURFACE GEOLOGY Wallace Lee, E.M., Geologist Daniel F. Merriam, M.S., Geologist PERGOLEUM ENGINEERING C. F. Weinaug, Ph.D., Petro. Engineer\* Floyd Preston, M.S., Chem. Engineer J. P. Everett, M.S., Petro. Engineer\* Tvan Nemecck, M.S., Mech. Engineer\*

CERAMICS

Morman Plummer, A.B., Ceramist William B. Hladik, Ceramist J. Sheldon Carey, A.M., Ceramist\* Clarence Edmonds, Laboratory Asst.

GEOCHEMISTRY Russell T. Runnels, M.S., Chemist John Schleicher, B.S., Chemist William Ives, Jr., M.S., Geologist Richard Lloyd, B.S., Chemist Walter E. Hill, Jr., A.B., Chemist Loretta Vorse, A.B., Chemist

COOPERATIVE DEPARTMENTS WITH UNITED STATES GEOLOGICAL SURVEY Betty Henderson, A.B., Stenographer Betty Mason, Typist

MINERAL FUELS RESOURCES Holly C. Wagner, M.A., Geologist Charlene Anderson, Clerk

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEYS D. L. Kennedy, Division Engineer Max J. Gleissner, Section Chief J. P. Rydeen, Topographer

SPECIAL CONSULTANTS: Eugene A. Stephenson, Ph.D., Petroleum Engineering; Robert W. Wilson, Ph.D., Vertebrate Paleontology.
COOPERATING STATE AGENCIES: State Board of Agriculture, Division of Water Resources, Robert Smrha, Chief Engineer; State Board of Health, Division of Sanitation, Dwight Metzler, Chief Engineer and Director, and Willard O. Hilton, Geologist.
\*Intermittent employment only.

# STATE GEOLOGICAL SURVEY OF KANSAS, BULLETIN 114 1955 REPORTS OF STUDIES, PART 3, PAGES 113-128, FIGURES 1-3, PLATES 1-3 MAY 1, 1955

# MAGNETIC ANOMALIES IN WILSON AND WOODSON COUNTIES, KANSAS

By

William W. Hambleton and Daniel F. Merriam

# CONTENTS

Abstract	115
INTRODUCTION	
Geology	
Stratigraphy	
Surface rocks	
Subsurface rocks	
Structure	
Structural map on the base of the Plattsburg limestone	
Structural map on the top of Mississippian rocks	
MAGNETIC SURVEY	
Procedure	
Results	
Comparison of magnetic and structural data	
Detailed investigations at Rose and Silver City domes	
Discussion of results	
Conclusions	127
References	128

# ILLUSTRATIONS

PLATE		PAGE
	ity magnetic map of northern Wi ties, Kansas	
-	s in northern Wilson and souther	
3. Field operation	of a Ruska vertical magnetomete	r120

# FIGURE

FIG	URE	
1.	Index map showing location of area described in this report and other areas in which geophysical exploration has been conducted by the State Geological Survey of Kansas	
2.	Detailed vertical intensity magnetic map of the Rose dome area in Woodson County	.123
3.	Detailed vertical intensity magnetic map of the Silver City dome area in Wilson and Woodson Counties	

# ABSTRACT

A survey of vertical magnetic intensity was conducted in northern Wilson and southern Woodson Counties, Kansas, in order to aid in determining the character and extent of the igneous rocks associated with the Rose and Silver City domes. These unique intrusives have at times aroused considerable attention as a possible source of economically useful minerals and rocks. Granite is exposed at the Rose dome and peridotite is exposed at the Silver City dome; both are intruded into sediments as young as the Missourian Series of the Pennsylvanian System.

The survey consisted of a regional magnetic study and detailed magnetic studies of the Rose and Silver City domes. These data are compared with structure maps on top of the Plattsburg limestone of Pennsylvanian age and on top of the Mississippian rocks.

Results of the survey indicate that the magnetometer may be used as a reconnaissance tool to map location and trend of geologic structures in this area, but that it was not successful in determining the character and extent of the intrusive igneous rocks because the intrusives lack magnetic contrast with the sedimentary rocks. The survey indicates also that structural highs are reflected as negative magnetic anomalies. A combination of basement characteristics and thinning or absence of Pennsylvanian sandstones over structural highs may account for this condition.

# INTRODUCTION

Outcrops of igneous rocks in Kansas are known only at seven localities; five of these exposures occur in Riley County where basic igneous rocks have intruded rocks of Permian age and two exposures occur in southern Woodson County where igneous rocks have intruded Pennsylvanian rocks. The area studied is in southeastern Kansas in Wilson and Woodson Counties (Fig. 1) between Yates Center on the north and Benedict on the south, and includes the Rose and Silver City domes. Granite is exposed at Rose dome and peridotite at Silver City dome.

Because of this paucity of exposures of igneous rocks in Kansas, the granitic and peridotitic intrusives of southern Woodson County have aroused considerable interest as a possible source of economically useful minerals and rocks. The area has been discussed previously by Mudge (1881), Hay (1883), Twenhofel (1917, 1926), Moore and Haynes (1920), Twenhofel and Edwards (1921), Twenhofel and Bremer (1928), Knight and Landes (1932), and Weidman (1933). Recent detailed studies by Holly C. Wagner prompted this geophysical study for the purpose of obtaining additional in-

# 116 Geological Survey of Kansas-1955 Reports of Studies

formation concerning the character and extent of the intrusive bodies.

A vertical intensity magnetic survey (Pl. 1) was carried on intermittently during the fall of 1953 and the spring of 1954. It consisted of a reconnaissance survey and detailed surveys over the domes. The reconnaissance survey was made to determine regional magnetic variations as a framework for the interpretation of the detailed surveys of the intrusives.

To our knowledge only two other geophysical studies have been made in this area: a magnetic survey and a radioactivity survey. Data concerning the magnetic survey which was made in 1935 were furnished by W. L. Stryker, geologist at Fredonia, Kansas



FIG. 1.—Index map showing location of area described in this report and other areas in which geophysical exploration has been conducted by the State Geological Survey of Kansas (numbers refer to Kansas Geological Survey bulletins).

(personal communication). Few readings were taken and the information was not published. The radioactivity survey over the Rose dome was made by R. A. Hartenberger (1948). This survey shows a high radioactivity anomaly at the center of the dome and Hartenberger concluded that the anomaly was caused by the granite.

We are indebted to Holly C. Wagner of the Federal Geological Survey, who furnished geological information, supplied data for the structural maps, and assisted during the early part of the field work. William R. Atkinson helped as field assistant during most of the study.

# GEOLOGY

# Stratigraphy

Paleozoic rocks about 2,500 feet thick overlie the Pre-Cambrian basement complex in northern Wilson and southern Woodson Counties. These rocks have a slight northwesterly regional dip. A map showing the general configuration of the top of the Pre-Cambrian surface of eastern Kansas has been published by Jewett (1954, p. 58). The stratigraphy is treated only briefly here; the reader is referred to Moore and others (1951), Wagner and Harris (1953), and Wagner (1954) for a more complete discussion and description of the rocks.

Surface rocks.—Granite crops out in sec. 13, T. 26 S., R. 15 E. near the crest of the Rose dome. Contact zones in Pennsylvanian shale indicate that the granite intruded Pennsylvanian rocks. Knight and Landes (1932, p. 14) have suggested that this intrusive is a dike. Small outcrops of peridotite occur at several places in secs. 29 and 32, T. 26 S., R. 15 E. at the Silver City dome. There are also numerous outcrops of quartzite and other metamorphosed sedimentary rocks in the vicinity of the peridotite intrusive. A study of the altered zones around the peridotite and the metamorphosed rocks indicates that the peridotite was intruded into Pennsylvanian rocks (Wagner, personal communication).

The sedimentary rocks that crop out in the area include the Stanton limestone and Weston shale of the Missourian Series and the Stranger formation and Lawrence shale of the Virgilian Series of Pennsylvanian age. The Iatan limestone is not present in the area. The Tonganoxie sandstone member of the Stranger formation and the Ireland sandstone member of the Lawrence shale, which form prominent topographic benches in the area, are absent over the Rose and Silver City domes. The Tonganoxie has an average thickness of about 30 feet and the Ireland about 25 feet. In the vicinity of the intrusives the sandstones may be distinctly reddish rather than the common yellowish-orange color.

Subsurface rocks.—Igneous rocks of various descriptions have been reported in wells drilled near the intrusives. These rocks are thin and are intercalated with the normal sequence of rocks in the section.

Pennsylvanian rocks of the Lansing, Kansas City, Pleasanton, Marmaton, and "Cherokee" groups are present in the subsurface of northern Wilson and southern Woodson Counties. These rocks consist of alternating shale, limestone, and sandstone. The lenticular sands in the "Cherokee" group have a high magnetite content (Dreyer, 1947, p. 109).

Mississippian rocks which underlie the Pennsylvanian rocks consist mainly of limestone and dolomite which contain large amounts of chert. The Chattanooga shale, of Mississippian or Devonian age, underlies the Mississippian rocks.

The Arbuckle group of Cambro-Ordovician age underlies the Chattanooga shale and overlies the Pre-Cambrian basement complex. These rocks consist mainly of limestone and dolomite.

# STRUCTURE

Regionally, the area lies on the northern flank of the Cherokee basin. The structure consists mainly of low undulating folds and small normal faults with little displacement. Structural maps (Pl. 2) may be compared with the magnetic map (Pl. 1) to show the relation between rock structure and magnetic anomalies. The structure maps are based on information available to the State Geological Survey on January 1, 1954. Lee and Merriam (1954) discuss the structural development of eastern Kansas.

Structural map on the base of the Plattsburg limestone.—Plate 2A shows by 50-foot contours the regional structure on the base of the Plattsburg limestone of Pennsylvanian age. The map combines both surface and subsurface data. The regional dip of the beds is northwest about 25 feet to the mile. Two prominent anticlinal trends are shown. One extends southeast-northwest through Buffalo and the Silver City dome to about 1½ miles southwest of Batesville and the other southwest-northeast from southeast of Coyville through the Silver City and Rose domes to sec. 11, T. 26 S., R. 16 E. Minor synclines and anticlines paralleling these major trends are also recognizable.

Structural map on the top of Mississippian rocks.—Plate 2B shows by 50-foot contours the structure on top of the Mississippian rocks. The regional dip of the beds is northwest about 35 feet to the mile. The major structural trends are in aproximately the same position and have about the same directional trend as the structures on the base of the Plattsburg limestone.

# MAGNETIC SURVEY

# Procedure

A Ruska vertical magnetometer (Pl. 3) was used in the geophysical survey. The instrument has a sensitivity of 11.3 gammas per scale division and is thermally compensated. Instrument readings for the regional magnetic investigation were taken on a 1 mile grid, usually at section corners. Readings were taken on a 40 acre or less spacing for the detailed investigations at Rose and Silver City domes. A magnetic datum of 340 gammas was assumed for a base station located at a road junction in the SW cor. SW<sup>1</sup>/<sub>4</sub> sec. 36, T. 26 S., R. 15 E. Instrument readings were corrected for diurnal variation, latitude and longitude, and annual variation. County road maps, prepared by the Kansas Highway Department, were used for base maps in the regional survey. U.S. Department of Agriculture aerial photos were used to locate stations for the detailed surveys. Care was taken to avoid culverts, cased oil wells, steel fences, power lines, etc., which would tend to distort the natural magnetic field.

# RESULTS

The magnetic irregularities at the earth's surface resulting from differences in magnetic intensity are called magnetic anomalies. These anomalies are termed "negative" or magnetic "lows" if less than the "normal" intensity and are "positive" or magnetic "highs" if more than the "normal" intensity. Such anomalies generally are produced by differences in magnetic susceptibility which in turn



PLATE 3.—Field operation of a Ruska vertical magnetometer.

largely reflect the magnetite content of the rocks. For the most part, igneous and metamorphic rocks are more magnetic than sedimentary rocks. Among the sedimentary rocks, clastic deposits such as sandstone and shale are more magnetic than nonclastics such as limestone and dolomite. A list of rocks and minerals and their relative magnetic susceptibilities is given by Jakosky (1950, p. 164).

Inasmuch as magnetic intensity is an inverse square function, the distance of any magnetic body from the magnetometer affects the size of the anomaly. Structures such as folds and faults in deepseated or basement rocks usually produce anomalies since more (or less) magnetic rocks may be brought closer to the surface. Deeply buried rocks might be expected also to produce lesser anomalies than similar rocks near the surface or even be masked by near-surface irregularities.

The results of the regional magnetic survey are shown on Plate 1 by means of isogams (lines of equal vertical magnetic intensity) plotted at a 20-gamma interval. The map reveals a series of southsoutheast-north-northwest trending anomalies. Prominent negative or low trends extend (1) from sec. 5, T. 27 S., R. 14 E., just east of Coyville, to sec. 2, T. 28 S., R. 14 E.; (2) from Batesville in the northwest corner of the area southeastward to about 3 miles west of Benedict; and (3) from just west of Rose through Buffalo to just east of Roper. Several local negative closures occur on these trends. The most prominent of these lies just east of Roper in sec. 25, T. 27 S., R. 15 E. and sec. 30, T. 27 S., R. 16 E. and has a closure of at least 160 gammas. Other large anomalies are located in the  $NW\frac{1}{4}$  sec. 5, T. 27 S., R. 14 E. with possibly 140 gammas of closure and in sec. 25, T. 26 S., R. 14 E. with a closure of about 100 gammas. Lesser negative anomalies are located in sec. 30, T. 27 S., R. 15 E. with a closure of 20 gammas; sec. 12, T. 26 S., R. 15 E. with a closure of 20 gammas; and secs. 2 and 3, T. 26 S., R. 16 E. with about 40 gammas closure. Most of these anomalies have a north-south elongation and trend either slightly east or west of north. The anomaly east of Roper is more ovoid in shape.

Three positive trends separate the parallel negative trends and extend (1) from southwest of Batesville to sec. 1, T. 28 S., R. 14 E.; (2) from northeast of Batesville to secs. 4 and 5, T. 28 S., R. 15 E.; and (3) from sec. 29, T. 25 S., R. 16 E. to secs. 11 and 12, T. 27 S., R. 16 E. There are several areas of positive closure along the trends. The most prominent of these is in sec. 8, T. 26 S., R. 15 E. and has an 80-gamma closure. Others of lesser magnitude are located in sec. 5, T. 28 S., R. 14 E. with a closure of about 20 gammas; sec. 10, T. 26 S., R. 14 E. with a closure of 20 gammas; sec. 3, T. 27 S., R. 15 E. with more than 20 gammas closure; and in secs. 4 and 5, T. 28 S., R. 15 E. with a possible closure of about 40 gammas. The positive anomalies all have a north-south elongation with a trend slightly west of north. In general the positive anomalies are of lesser magnitude than the negative anomalies.

Comparison of magnetic and structural data.—Comparison of the magnetic map (Pl. 1) with the structural map on the base of the Plattsburg limestone of Pennsylvanian age (Pl. 2A) shows that there is some coincidence of magnetic and structural trends. The negative anomaly trend which begins just south of Batesville coincides with the anticlinal trend in that part of the area. However, the negative anomaly continues southeasterly whereas the anticlinal trend swings east through Buffalo. The northeast-southwest anticlinal trend of the structure map is not as sharply defined as the series of magnetic anomalies. A possible coincident trend of negative anomalies and anticlinal structure begins northeast of Rose and continues southwest to just north of Coyville.

A study of structure in comparison to magnetic anomalies indicates close relation between structural highs and negative magnetic anomalies although, at most places, the magnetic lows are displaced to the northwest of the structure. Examples are Rose dome, the structure northeast of Rose, the Silver City dome, and the structure east of Roper. Reason for displacement in this area is not known. According to Jakosky (1950, p. 225) the following factors may contribute: (1) inclination of the earth's magnetic field; (2) the igneous core is not in conformity with overlying sedimentary rocks; (3) basement rocks are not of uniform magnetic properties; (4) the structural axis of the sedimentary structure shifts with depth. Inclination of the earth's field can have little contributory effect in this area since displacement should be to the south. Shift of structural axis with depth seems the most likely of the explanations.

The structural map on the top of Mississippian rocks (Pl. 2B) shows relations similar to those shown on the Plattsburg structural map although a northeast-southwest Mississippian structural trend is the most evident. The structural highs are more elongated in the direction of the trend than are the negative anomalies. Comparison of magnetic and structural data indicates that negative anomalies coincide reasonably well with structural highs but that the negative anomalies again are displaced to the northwest at the Rose and Silver City domes. The negative anomaly and the structural high northeast of Rose dome show some coincidence. However, displacement of the magnetic anomaly is southeast instead of northwest as it is on the Pennsylvanian structure map. This may be due to a control factor, because less data are available for the Mississippian map.

Detailed investigations at Rose and Silver City domes.—As the main purpose of the magnetic survey was to aid in determining the character and extent of the intrusive bodies at Rose and Silver City, detailed investigations of the anomalies at these locations were made. This work was undertaken after the conclusion of the regional study.

The detailed study of the Rose area (Fig. 2) shows that a positive anomaly is superposed on the regional negative anomaly. This magnetic high is in the southeastern part of sec. 13, T. 26 S., R. 15 E. and covers an area of about 40 acres where granite is exposed. The



FIG. 2.—Detailed vertical intensity magnetic map of the Rose dome area in Woodson County. The outcrop pattern of the Tonganoxie sandstone member is also shown; +, positive anomalies; -, negative anomalies.



minor effect of the granite and its small sphere of influence were determined by taking magnetometer readings directly on the granite and at adjacent places where granite was not exposed. A difference of only 60 gammas was noted. The granite body probably is tabular in form with dike or sill characteristics, as the outcrop area is narrow and metamorphic contacts show its limits and intrusive nature.

The detailed study of the Silver City area (Fig. 3) reveals that the character of the magnetic anomaly as determined on a reconnaissance basis is little changed by detailed study. The single low is resolved into two magnetic lows of about equal closure. The magnetic lows are displaced to the west of the structural high and there is no marked coincidence of magnetic and structural contours. The peridotite at the surface has little effect on the magnetic readings as indicated by the isogams cutting across igneous-sedimentary contacts. The irregularity of the contours in the southwestern part of sec. 32, T. 26 S., R. 15 E. may indicate the location of the feeder for the intrusion.

# DISCUSSION OF RESULTS

Conclusions resulting from the study are premised on certain basic assumptions regarding the relation between magnetic and geologic data in this area. (1) The magnetic anomalies are produced by sandstones or shales in Pennsylvanian rocks, by igneous and metamorphic rocks of the basement complex, by intrusive igneous rocks, or by a combination of these factors. Sedimentary rocks older than Pennsylvanian consist mainly of limestone and dolomite which have low magnetic susceptibility whereas shale, and especially sandstone of relatively high magnetic susceptibility is common in Pennsylvanian rocks. In addition, igneous rocks usually have a relatively high magnetic susceptibility and such rocks are known to be present in the basement complex and intercalated with sediments at places in this area. (2) Because there is coincidence of magnetic lows with known structural highs at certain places, it is assumed that all magnetic lows reflect structural highs. This concept gains validity from comparison with Dreyer's (1947) study in southeastern Crawford County, Kansas, where conditions are similar. (3) Mississippian and Pennsylvanian structures, for the most part, are a reflection of basement structure. However, it must be remembered that basement rocks have been involved in all structural deformation of the area, which has been

# 126 Geological Survey of Kansas-1955 Reports of Studies

mainly post-Mississippian, and that divergence of deep-seated and near-surface structure should be reflected in the magnetic data. The effects of structures produced by differential compaction not related to basement structure are discounted because of the marked magnetic linear trends discussed earlier. This assumption may not be justified completely. Exceptions are the Rose and Silver City domes where structure results largely from intercalation of igneous rocks (Wagner, 1954). However, location of the domes on structural trends suggests that intrusion took place along zones of weakness in the basement complex and that even these domes probably reflect basement structure.

On the basis of these assumptions, several possibilities are suggested to account for the coincidence of magnetic lows and structural highs. (A) The anomalies are caused by basement rocks alone. Thus, a structural high would produce a magnetic low if the basement rocks exhibit inverse polarity. The possibility of variation in basement rock type, hence magnetic susceptibility, must be considered but it is evident that this factor would not be reflected in Mississippian and Pennsylvanian structures. (B) Dreyer (1947, p. 111) reports that "Cherokee" sandstones have a magnetic field of sufficient magnitude to account for anomalies in Crawford County and Paul C. Franks (personal communication) reports a magnetite content as high as 8 percent for the Ireland and Tonganoxie sandstone members in this area. Thinning of such sandstones over a structural high would decrease the magnitude of the anomaly and produce, in effect, a negative anomaly. Variations in the magnetite content of these sediments could produce seeming magnetic lows. Such variations could result from the effects of "Cherokee" channel or beach sands. This is considered unlikely because the anomalies parallel distinct structural trends and no anomalies were evident at places where there is oil and gas production from known "Cherokee" sands. (C) The anomalies are caused by both basement rocks and Pennsylvanian sandstones. In this event, the near-surface sedimentary rocks would tend to modify or mask the effects of the deeper basement rocks and differentiation of causes would be difficult. Dreyer (1947, p. 111) has discussed a number of conditions and effects for a situation of this type. The presence of intrusive igneous rocks would modify further the character of an anomaly since such rocks should produce a magnetic high.

There are two distinct geologic conditions in the part of Wilson and Woodson Counties studied. The first involves structural highs associated with intrusive rocks and the second, structural highs where no intrusive rocks are evident either at the surface or in the subsurface.

The granite and peridotite might be expected to produce positive magnetic anomalies where structural highs are associated with intrusives, such as at Rose and Silver City domes. However, petrographic examination of thin sections indicates that neither of these rocks has an average magnetite content higher than 2 percent. These rocks, therefore, should produce relatively low-order positive anomalies, which seems to be illustrated by the detailed study at Rose dome. Alternately, an explanation of these anomalies lies in the absence of Ireland and Tonganoxie (Figs. 2, 3) sandstone members over the domes. Because these sandstones have a relatively high magnetite content, their absence would result in magnetic lows. The presence of granite or peridotite would tend to compensate for the negative anomaly produced by the absence of the sandstone and would superimpose a magnetic high on the magnetic low at places where the igneous rocks crop out, as at Rose dome. Because the peridotite has a lower susceptibility than the granite, there is no superimposed magnetic high at Silver City dome.

If no igneous rocks are involved, the anomalies may be due to the absence of magnetite-bearing sandstone. Thinning or absence in the subsurface of other Pennsylvanian rocks, such as the "Cherokee," may produce negative anomalies over structural highs. However, the anomalies probably are the product of both basement and sedimentary rock effects for negative anomalies do not always coincide with Mississippian or Pennsylvanian structural highs.

# CONCLUSIONS

Seemingly the vertical magnetometer can be used successfully as a reconnaissance tool in Wilson and Woodson Counties to map the location and trend of geologic structures. The present survey confirms the major known structural features indicated by surface and subsurface mapping and indicates the possible occurrence of additional structure.

# 128 Geological Survey of Kansas-1955 Reports of Studies

Magnetic lows indicate structural highs and magnetic highs indicate structural lows in this area. The condition probably is caused by a combination of basement characteristics and thinning or absence of Pennsylvanian sandstones over structural highs.

The vertical magnetometer was not especially successful in the determination of the character and extent of the intrusive igneous rocks at Rose and Silver City domes owing to lack of contrast between magnetic susceptibility of igneous and sedimentary rocks.

# REFERENCES

- DREYER, R. M. (1947) Magnetic survey of southeastern Crawford County, Kansas: Kansas Geol. Survey, Bull. 70, pt. 5, pp. 105-115.
- HARTENBERGER, R. A. (1948) Radioactivity survey over the Rose dome: Kansas Geol. Survey, open file.
- HAY, ROBERT (1883) The igneous rocks of Kansas: Kansas Acad. Sci. Trans., vol. 8, pp. 14-18.
- JAKOSKY, J. J. (1950) Exploration geophysics: Trija Publ. Co., Los Angeles, Calif., pp. 1-1195.
- JEWETT, J. M. (1954) Oil and gas in eastern Kansas: Kansas Geol. Survey, Bull. 104, pp. 1-397.
- KNIGHT, G. L., AND LANDES, K. K. (1932) Kansas laccoliths: Jour. Geology, vol. 40, no. 1, pp. 1-15.
- LEE, WALLACE, AND MERRIAM, D. F. (1954) Cross sections in eastern Kansas: Kansas Geol. Survey, Oil and Gas Investi., No. 12, Cross Secs., pp. 1-8.
- MOORE, R. C., AND HAYNES, W. P. (1920) An outcrop of basic igneous rock in Kansas: Am Assoc. Petroleum Geologists Bull., vol. 4, no. 2, pp. 183-187.
- MOORE, R. C., AND OTHERS (1951) The Kansas rock column: Kansas Geol. Survey, Bull. 89, pp. 1-132.
- MUDCE, B. F. (1881) Metamorphic deposit in Woodson County: Kansas Acad. Sci. Trans., vol. 7, pp. 11-13.
- TWENHOFEL, W. H. (1917) Granite bowlders in (?) the Pennsylvanian strata of Kansas: Am. Jour. Sci., 4th ser., vol. 43, no. 257, pp. 363-380.
- (1926) Intrusive granite of the Rose dome, Woodson County, Kansas: Geol. Soc. America Bull., vol. 37, no. 2, pp. 403-412.
- TWENHOFEL, W. H., AND BREMER, BERNARD (1928) An extension of the Rose dome intrusives, Kansas: Am. Assoc. Petroleum Geologists Bull., vol. 12, no. 7, pp. 757-762.
- TWENHOFEL, W. H., AND EDWARDS, E. C. (1921) The metamorphic rocks of Woodson County, Kansas: Am. Assoc. Petroleum Geologists Bull., vol. 5, no. 1, pp. 64-74.
- WAGNER, H. C. (1954) Geology of the Fredonia quadrangle, Kansas: U. S. Geol. Survey, Geologic Quadrangle Maps of the U. S., GQ 49.
- WAGNER, H. C., AND HARRIS, L. D. (1953) Stratigraphy of the outcropping Pennsylvanian rocks of the Fredonia quadrangle, Kansas: U. S. Geol. Survey, Oil and Gas Investi., Chart OC 48.
- WEIDMAN, SAMUEL (1933) Igneous intrusives in Silver City area, Kansas: Am. Assoc. Petroleum Geologists Bull., vol. 17, no. 10, pp. 1268-1270.

# STATE GEOLOGICAL SURVEY OF KANSAS

# **Recent Publications**

BULLETIN 94. Ground-Water Resources of Pawnee Valley, Kansas, by V. C. Fishel. 144 pages, 1952. Mailing charge, 25 cents.

BULLETIN 95. Geology and Ground-Water Resources of Lincoln County, Kansas, by Delmar W. Berry, 96 pages, 1952. Mailing charge, 25 cents.

BULLETIN 96. 1952 Reports of Studies (Nine parts issued separately). Mailing charge, 10 cents each part.

BULLETIN 97. Oil and Gas Developments in Kansas During 1951, by W. A. Ver Wiebe, J. M. Jewett, E. D. Goebel, and A. L. Hornbaker, 188 pages, 1952. Mailing charge, 25 cents.

BULLETIN 98. Geology and Ground-Water Resources of the North Fork Solomon River in Mitchell, Osborne, Smith, and Phillips Counties, Kansas, by Alvin R. Leonard, 150 pages, 1952. Mailing charge, 25 cents.

BULLETIN 99. Pleistocene Geology of Kansas, by John C. Frye and A. Byron Leonard, 230 pages. Mailing charge, 25 cents.

BULLETIN 100. Geology and Ground-Water Resources of Cheyenne County, Kansas, by Glenn C. Prescott, Jr., 106 pages, 1953. Mailing charge, 25 cents.

BULLETIN 101. Geology and Ground-Water Resources of Jackson County, Kansas, by Kenneth L. Walters, 91 pages, 1953. Mailing charge, 25 cents.

BULLETIN 102. 1953 Reports of Studies (Seven parts issued separately). Mailing charge, 10 cents each part.

BULLETIN 103. Oil and Gas Developments in Kansas During 1952, by W. A. Ver Wiebe, E. D. Goebel, J. M. Jewett, and A. L. Hornbaker, 201 pages, 1953. Mailing charge, 25 cents.

BULLETIN 104. Oil and Gas in Eastern Kansas, by John Mark Jewett, 397 pages, 1954. Mailing charge, 25 cents.

BULLETIN 105. Geology and Ground-Water Resources of Sherman County, Kansas, by Glenn C. Prescott, Jr., 130 pages, 1953. Mailing charge, 25 cents.

BULLETIN 106. Geology and Ground-Water Resources of Marshall County, Kansas, by Kenneth L. Walters, 116 pages, 1954. Mailing charge, 25 cents.

BULLETIN 107. Oil and Gas Developments in Kansas During 1953, by W. A. Ver Wiebe, E. D. Goebel, A. L. Hornbaker, and J. M. Jewett, 208 pages, 1954. Mailing charge, 25 cents.

BULLETIN 108. Geology and Ground-Water Resources of Wichita and Greeley Counties, Kansas, by Glenn C. Prescott, Jr., John R. Branch, and Woodrow W. Wilson, 134 pages, 1954. Mailing charge, 25 cents.

VOLUME 12. Geology, Mineral Resources, and Ground-Water Resources of Lyon County, Kansas, by Howard G. O'Connor, Edwin D. Goebel, and Norman Plummer, 59 pages, 1953. Mailing charge, 40 cents.

OIL AND GAS INVESTIGATIONS, No. 9, Cross Section, Subsurface Geologic Cross Section from Meade County to Smith County, Kansas, by Wallace Lee, 1953. Mailing charge, 25 cents.

OIL AND GAS INVESTIGATIONS, No. 10, Map. The Petroleum Industry in Kansas, by Edwin D. Goebel, 1953. Map 283/2 x 45 inches, 4 colors. Mailing charge, 25 cents folded in cover, 50 cents rolled (in a tube).

OIL AND GAS INVESTIGATIONS, No. 11, Maps and Cross Sections. Preliminary Study of the Structure of Western Kansas, by Wallace Lee and Daniel F. Merriam, 1954. Mailing charge, 40 cents.

OIL AND GAS INVESTIGATIONS, No. 12, Cross Sections. Cross Sections in Eastern Kansas, by Wallace Lee and Daniel F. Merriam, 1954. Mailing charge, 25 cents.

GRAPHIC COLUMN OF KANSAS ROCKS, chart 22x33 inches, 1952. Mailing charge, 10 cents if folded, 20 cents if rolled in a tube.

KANSAS ROCKS AND MINERALS, by Laura Lu Tolsted and Ada Swineford, 56 pages, 1952. Mailing charge, 5 cents.

THE KANSAS SCENE, by Grace Muilenburg, 48 pages, 1953. Free of charge.

# STATE GEOLOGICAL SURVEY OF KANSAS

#### **BULLETIN 109**

### 1954 REPORTS OF STUDIES

- PART 1. SOME PRELIMINARY STUDIES ON COMPOSITIONS OF LIGHTWEIGHT STRUC-TURAL SHAPES BY FOAM METHODS, by Ronald G. Hardy, pp. 1-12, fig. 1, March 1, 1954.
- PART 2. APPLICATION OF THE TRI-AXIAL TYPE DIAGRAM TO THE STUDY OF COn-CRETE MASONRY BATCH MIXES IN PLANT PRACTICE, by Ronald G. Hardy, pp. 13-28, figs. 1-4, March 10, 1954.
- PART 3. SIGNIFICANT NEW EXPOSURES OF PLEISTOCENE DEPOSITS AT KIRWIN, PHILLIPS COUNTY, KANSAS, by John C. Frye and A. Byron Leonard, pp. 29-48, figs. 1-3, pls. 1-3, April 1, 1954.
- PART 4. ADDITIONAL STUDIES OF THE CENOZOIC OF WESTERN KANSAS, by Daniel F. Merriam and John C. Frye, pp. 49-64, pls. 1-2, May 31, 1954.
- PART 5. THICKNESS MAPS AS CRITERIA OF REGIONAL STRUCTURAL MOVEMENT, by Wallace Lee, pp. 65-80, figs. 1-10, May 31, 1954.
- PART 6. GRADED SLOPES IN WESTERN KANSAS, by John C. Frye, pp. 81-96, fig. 1, pls. 1-2, June 15, 1954.
- PART 7. ELECTRICAL RESISTIVITY STUDIES IN THE KANSAS RIVER VALLEY, by Daniel F. Merriam, pp. 97-112, figs. 1-5, pls. 1-2, October 15, 1954.
- PART 8. PRELIMINARY SPECTROGRAPHIC INVESTIGATION OF GERMANIUM IN KANSAS COAL, by John A. Schleicher and William W. Hambleton, pp. 113-124, figs. 1-2, October 15, 1954.
- PART 9. THE GEOLOGY OF THE NORTON OIL FIELD, NORTON COUNTY, KANSAS, by Daniel F. Merriam and Edwin D. Goebel, pp. 125-152, figs. 1-4, pls. 1-2, December 15, 1954.
- PART 10. CHEMICAL, PETROGRAPHIC, AND CERAMIC PROPERTIES OF FOUR CLAYS FROM THE DAKOTA FORMATION IN KANSAS, by Norman Plummer, Ada Swineford, Russell T. Runnels, and John A. Schleicher, pp. 153-216, figs. 1-17, pls. 1-3, December 31, 1954.

#### **BULLETIN 114**

#### 1955 REPORT OF STUDIES

- PART 1. EVALUATION OF ACID ETCHING OF LIMESTONE, by William Ives, Jr., pp. 1-48, fig. 1, pls. 1-5, April 1, 1955.
- PART 2. COAL RESOURCES OF THE MARMATON GROUP IN EASTERN KANSAS, by Walter H. Schoewe, pp. 49-112, fig. 1, pls. 1-4, April 15, 1955.
- PART 3. MAGNETIC ANOMALIES IN WILSON AND WOODSON COUNTIES, KANSAS, by William W. Hambleton and Daniel F. Merriam, pp. 113-128, figs. 1-3, pls. 1-3, May 1, 1955.